
 
 1 

REGULAR STATE BANKING BOARD MEETING 
HELD BY CONFERENCE CALL 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

2000 SCHAFER STREET, SUITE G 
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA 

 
 January 13, 2011 
 
 

The regular meeting of the State Banking Board was held in the Office of the 
Commissioner, Department of Financial Institutions, 2000 Schafer Street, Suite G, 
Bismarck, North Dakota.  Chairman Entringer called the meeting to order at 9:00 
a.m., Thursday, January 13, 2011, by conference call. 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Robert J. Entringer, Chairman (Office) 

Nancy Baerwald, Member (Cando) 
Bill Daniel, Member (Bismarck) 

Lorren Henke, Member (Wishek)  
Kim Larson, Member (Arthur) 
Anita Quale, Member (Watford City) 

 
MEMBER ABSENT: Roger Monson, Member 
   

 ALSO PRESENT: Aaron K. Webb, Secretary (Office) 
     Suzette Richardson, Administrative Assistant (Office) 

Lise Kruse, Chief Examiner – Banks, (Office) 
 
 
INTRODUCTIONS 
 
 Chairman Entringer announced that Aaron Webb, the Department’s former 
legal counsel from the Attorney General’s Office, began his position as Assistant 
Commissioner for the Department on January 11, 2011.  Chairman Entringer also 
announced that Lise Kruse, a Financial Institutions Examiner from the Fargo Field 
Office, began her position as Acting Chief Examiner – Banks on January 1, 2011. 
 
 



 
 2 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Chairman Entringer indicated the Board received copies of the minutes of the 
regular meeting held on November 10, 2010. 

 
It was moved by Member Quale, seconded by Member Baerwald, and 

carried by a vote of 6 to 0, with Member Monson absent, to approve the 
minutes as presented. 

 
 
THE FIRST AND FARMERS BANK, PORTLAND – REQUEST TO 
TRANSFER FROM SURPLUS TO UNDIVIDED PROFITS 
 
 Chairman Entringer indicated based on the Department’s recent examination, 
a request was received on January 4, 2011, from The First and Farmers Bank, 
Portland, to transfer $905,000 from surplus to undivided profits.  Chairman 
Entringer indicated the bank has negative undivided profits of $605,000 which 
results in impaired capital; therefore, is prohibited from declaring a dividend.  
Chairman Entringer indicated in the past banks have been informed if they have 
negative undivided profits the Department cannot approve a dividend request, and 
according to statute cannot declare a dividend.  Chairman Entringer indicated this 
transfer would not have an impact on the bank’s capital ratios, but would allow the 
bank to declare a dividend in the first quarter of 2011.  Chairman Entringer indicated 
the bank has also requested approval from the FDIC, and explained the FDIC 
handles this request as a reduction in capital.  Chairman Entringer concluded that he 
recommends approval of this request. 
 
 Member Quale asked if the bank’s undivided profits is negative because they 
have been declaring dividends in the past or because their earnings have been so 
poor, and Chairman Entringer indicated it is due to poor earnings.  Member Quale 
asked what the bank projects for future earnings, and Chairman Entringer indicated 
the bank’s condition has improved and they are projecting positive earnings. 
 
 Member Larson asked if the bank is a Sub S and if that is the reason for the 
need to declare a dividend.  Chairman Entringer stated it is a combination of 
shareholder tax obligations and holding company debt servicing. 
 



 
 3 

 Chief Examiner Kruse stated the bank is a Sub S and projected earnings for 
yearend 2010 is $189,000.  Chairman Entringer added he believes earnings will 
improve in 2011. 
 
 Member Quale stated she thought there is a restriction on paying dividends 
based on the bank’s income for the prior two years, and Chairman Entringer stated 
that is correct, adding the bank will have to request approval from the Commissioner 
or Board to declare a dividend.  Chairman Entringer explained this is the first step as 
the bank needs to transfer funds before requesting approval to declare a dividend.  
Member Quale questioned whether declaring dividends should be permitted just 
because the bank is moving money from surplus to undivided profits, and Chairman 
Entringer stated the bank would have to request approval from the Commissioner or 
Board. 
  
 Chairman Entringer stated he believes the bank had net losses the prior two 
years, and Chief Examiner Kruse indicated the bank reported net losses at yearend 
2009 and marginal at yearend 2008; however, as of September 30, 2011, the ROA is 
improving and considered satisfactory.  Chief Examiner Kruse added during the 
recent examination it was recommended the current Memorandum of Understanding 
be removed. 
 
 It was moved by Member Larson, seconded by Member Henke, and 
carried by a vote of 6 to 0, with Member Monson absent, to approve the request 
by The First and Farmers Bank, Portland, to transfer $905,000 from surplus to 
undivided profits. 
 
 
STATE BANK & TRUST OF KENMARE, KENMARE – REQUEST TO OWN 
RESIDENTIAL REAL ESTATE FOR THE BENEFIT OF EMPLOYEES 
 
 Chairman Entringer indicated the request for approval from State Bank & 
Trust of Kenmare to own residential real estate for the benefit of employees was 
emailed to the Board.  Chairman Entringer indicated the bank is requesting to 
purchase a twin home in Berthold, North Dakota, for $178,000.  Chairman Entringer 
reviewed the bank’s documentation which indicates the bank has complied with the 
State Banking Board Order issued November 10, 2010, as well as verification of the 
lack of suitable housing at a reasonable price in Berthold. 
 



 
 4 

 Chairman Entringer indicated after purchase of this property the bank is still 
within the fixed asset limitation of 65% of total equity.  Chairman Entringer 
indicated the bank’s exit strategy is documented that when the property is no longer 
occupied by bank personnel it will be listed for sale on the open market.  Chairman 
Entringer stated the five-year holding period would apply, and added if the Board 
approves this request he recommends adding the condition that the bank is required 
to notify the Department when the property is no longer occupied by bank 
employees and listed for sale. 
 
 Member Henke asked if Lakeside State Bank, New Town, has pursued options 
to purchase property, and Chairman Entringer stated to date no request has been 
received by the Department.  Member Quale indicated she believes Lakeside State 
Bank plans to build in conjunction with the school, and Chairman Entringer agreed. 
 
 It was moved by Member Baerwald, seconded by Member Quale, and 
carried by a vote of 6 to 0, with Member Monson absent, to approve the request 
by State Bank & Trust of Kenmare, Kenmare, to purchase residential real 
estate in Berthold, North Dakota, not to exceed $178,000, with the stipulation 
that the bank notify the Department when this property is no longer occupied 
by a bank employee and listed for sale. 
 
 
THE CITIZENS STATE BANK OF FINLEY, FINLEY – REQUEST TO 
INVEST IN A SUBSIDIARY 
 
 Chairman Entringer indicated he emailed the request received from The 
Citizens State Bank of Finley to invest in a subsidiary in order to transfer other real 
estate  into the LLC for purposes of disposal.  Chairman Entringer indicated the bank 
provided a copy of the Board minutes documenting the basis for determination that 
this investment will minimize or lessen the loss on the sale of the property, as well as 
providing a reasonable conclusion. 
 
 Chairman Entringer stated the Department proposed legislation that an 
application to invest in a subsidiary be submitted for consideration by the 
Commissioner and if the Commissioner’s decision is adverse, the bank may appeal 
its request to the Board.  Chairman Entringer stated the Legislative Committee did 
not act on the legislation; however, the Department has submitted proposed 
amendments for consideration by the House. 



 
 5 

 Chairman Entringer indicated the bank is proposing to invest $464,031.70 in 
the subsidiary to be known as The Hannaford Land Company, LLC, by transferring 
the bank’s interest in exchange for interest in the solely-owned LLC, and the LLC 
will be dissolved once the collateral is liquidated.   
 
 Chairman Entringer indicated if this request is approved he recommends the 
property must be transferred to the LLC at fair market value and any loss or gain 
should be recognized at the time of transfer; the investment in the LLC should 
continue to be reported as OREO with the five-year holding limitation under NDCC 
6-03-09; the bank’s investment in the LLC is limited to the amount transferred and 
cannot be increased without approval by the Board; and the bank is not permitted to 
further exchange the LLC interest for an interest in any other real estate or personal 
property. 
 
 It was moved by Member Daniel, seconded by Member Larson, and 
carried by a vote of 6 to 0, with Member Monson absent, to approve the request 
by The Citizens State Bank of Finley to invest $464,031.70 in the wholly-owned 
subsidiary known as the Hannaford Land Company, LLC, subject to the 
conditions recommended by Chairman Entringer. 
 
 
FACILITY DISCONTINUED 
 
 Chairman Entringer noted for the Board that on December 13, 2010, he 
approved the request by Unison Bank, Jamestown, to close its facility at 2400 8th 
Avenue Southwest (Buffalo Mall), Jamestown. 
 
 Member Henke indicated it was the bank’s decision to close the facility as it 
was no longer feasible. 
 
 
FACILITY APPLICATION 
 
 Chairman Entringer noted for the Board that on December 13, 2010, he 
approved the application by First United Bank, Park River, to establish a facility at 
234 2nd Street, Hoople. 
 
 



 
 6 

LEGISLATION UPDATE 
 
 Chairman Entringer indicated the Department has introduced legislation 
regarding the following:  eliminating the requirement for a bank to appoint a cashier 
as that term is antiquated as most banks employ chief financial officers; adding a 
definition of derivative as it is needed for the addition to the lending limit; extending 
the date for Tier 1, 2, 3 Capital which will tie in with the federal law definition; 
adding the ability to transfer other real estate upon application; adding a provision 
that a bank can submit an application requesting to trade locations without having to 
prove there is not sufficient business in the facility location, adding if a bank 
requests moving its main office to a location it does not have a facility an application 
would have to be presented to the Board; regarding the definition for total liability of 
a borrower under the legal lending limit proposing to change from capital, surplus 
and undivided profits to Tier 1 Capital so banks with goodwill will not include the 
goodwill in the calculation of its lending limit, as well as adding the language 
required by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform Act regarding credit exposure. 
 
 The Board went into closed session at 9:35 a.m., and returned to open session 
at 10:05 a.m. 
 
 
WINTHROP & WEINSTINE 
 
 Chairman Entringer indicated he received from the Winthrop & Weinstine 
Law Firm, Minneapolis, MN, requesting an interpretation from the Department on 
the ability of a North Dakota to invest in and purchase stock of a banker’s bank.  
Chairman Entringer indicated United Bankers Bank Corporation, Inc., is going to 
present a Private Placement Memorandum and start selling stock, as there may be 
interest among North Dakota banks.  Chairman Entringer indicated the Department 
will respond to the letter; however, was wondering in any members of the Board 
have been contacted by United Bankers Bank Corporation, Inc., to purchase stock.  
At this time no members of the Board have been contacted. 
 
 



 
 7 

APPOINTMENT 
 
 Chairman Entringer indicated he received notification dated January 3, 2010, 
that he was officially appointed Commissioner effective November 12, 2010.  
Chairman Entringer indicated he must be confirmed by the Senate. 
 
 The Board members offered congratulations to Bob and Aaron on their 
respective appointments. 
 
 
FURTHER UPATE REGARDING LEGISLATIVE  
 
 Chairman Entringer indicated it has been made clear the Department cannot 
include having the ability to write administrative rules in any of its proposed 
legislation; therefore, Department bills have had to be amended to remove reference 
to administrative rulemaking authority. 
 
 Chairman Entringer indicated the Department may acquire the licensing and 
regulation of debt settlement providers, and explained the proposed legislation 
drafted by Assistant Commissioner Webb, with fees that were based on Illinois law. 
 
 Member Henke congratulated and wishes the best of luck to Chairman 
Entringer and Assistant Commissioner Webb, and indicated he believes the 
Department and Board will be in competent hands.  The remaining Board members 
also extended their congratulations and best wishes. 
 
 It was moved by Member Quale, seconded by Member Larson, and 
unanimously carried to adjourn the meeting at 10:15 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
Robert J. Entringer, Chairman   Aaron K. Webb, Secretary 


